






May 4, 2021 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 5

CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
5:30 P.M., P.D.S.T., TUESDAY, MAY 4, 2021

ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS,
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/458385325

CALL TO ORDER

Jeff Dalling, Chairman of the City of Elko Planning Commission, called the meeting to order at
5:30 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Present: Jeff Dalling
Giovanni Puccinelli
John Anderson
Stefan Beck
Gratton Miller
Mercedes Mendive

Absent: Tera Hooiman

City Staff Present: Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager
Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Michele Rambo, Development Manager
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer
Jamie Winrod, Fire Marshal
Shelby Knopp, Planning Technician

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

April 6, 2021 – Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

***Motion: Approve the minutes from the April 6, 2021 regular meeting as presented.

Made by Giovanni Puccinelli, seconded by Gratton Miller

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

I. NEW BUSINESS



May 4, 2021 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 5

A. PUBLIC HEARING

1. Review, consideration, and possible action on Zoning Ordinance Amendment 1-21,
Ordinance No. 861, an amendment to the City Zoning Ordinance, specifically
Section 3-2-4; Establishment of Zoning Districts, 3-2-19; Nonconforming Uses & 3-
2-21; Amendments, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

At the April 6, 2021 meeting, Planning Commission took action to initiate an
amendment to the City Zoning Ordinance Title 3, Chapter 2, Section 4, Section 19
and Section 21.

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, gave a brief overview of the Zoning Amendment process and then
went over the proposed amendments to Sections 3-2-4, 3-2-19 and 3-2-21.

Michele Rambo, Development Manager, recommended approval as presented.

Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer, recommended approval as presented.

Jamie Winrod, Fire Marshal, had no comments and recommended approval.

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, recommended that the Ordinance was forwarded to
City Council for possible adoption.

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt an ordinance, which
approves Zoning Ordinance Amendment 1-21 of the Elko City Code specifically Section 3-
2-4; Establishment of Zoning Districts, 3-2-19; Nonconforming Uses & 3-2-21;
Amendments.

Made by Gratton Miller, seconded by Giovanni Puccinelli.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

2. Review, consideration, and possible action on Zoning Ordinance Amendment 2-21,
Ordinance No. 860, an amendment to the City Zoning Ordinance, specifically
Sections 3-2-2 (Definitions), 3-2-5 (Residential Zoning Districts), 3-2-6 (RB
Residential Business District), and 3-5-4 (Uses Permitted and Minimum Standards),
and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

At the April 6, 2021 meeting, Planning Commission took action to initiate an
amendment to the City Zoning Ordinance to address accessory building regulations
in the sections listed above.

Ms. Rambo went over the proposed amendments to Sections 3-2-2, 3-2-5, 3-2-6, and 3-5-4
regarding accessory structures and placement and size of those accessory structures. There have
not been any changes made since the Commission saw the amendments at their last meeting, but
there is one proposed change that staff would like to make. If the Commission agrees to the
change, it will need to be included in the motion. The additional proposed change is in regards to



May 4, 2021 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 5

the height limit for non-permanent accessory structures, which are the ones that can be bought at
Home Depot. Originally the height limits were set the same as the principle structure, but staff
would like to amend the height limitation to 15 feet.

Chairman Jeff Dalling pointed out that the maximum height was at 35 feet, which the
Commission agreed to. He asked if staff wanted to lower the maximum height to 15 feet.

Ms. Rambo said that was correct. She explained that in the table the maximum heights are listed
from 45 feet to 25 feet, depending on the zone. Staff wants to make everything simple and
change the maximum heights to 15 feet for all zones.

Commissioner Giovanni Puccinelli asked if that was for non-permanent accessory structures.

Ms. Rambo said yes, and clarified that it was for prefabricated sheds. She also added that staff
went around and measured and they were all less than 15 feet high.

Ms. Laughlin added that the sheds being sold at T-Rex are restricted by NDOT to be no more
than 12 feet high in order to be transported down the highway.

Chairman Dalling thanked Ms. Rambo and Ms. Laughlin for their explanations and said that it
helped everyone understand the reasoning behind the proposed change.

Ms. Rambo added that they wouldn’t be changing the maximum height for permanent accessory
structures, those would remain the same as the principle structure.

Mr. Wilkinson wanted to add, for the public’s benefit, that staff has taken rear yard setbacks for
accessory structures from 10 feet to 5 feet. The interior side yard and exterior side yard setbacks
are also reduced down to 5 feet. He wanted to emphasize the point that this proposed amendment
to the code provides a lot more yard utilization for property owners. Mr. Wilkinson
recommended that the Ordinance be forwarded to City Council for possible adoption.

Chairman Dalling thought that helped the public understand that they are getting more, which he
thought was great.

Mr. Wilkinson emphasized that a lot of properties have easements along their property lines. An
easement is a property right and typically easements, which are of record, provide for utility and
drainage property uses. Staff took a hard look at the setbacks and typical easements and tried to
match those up. There is a difference between an easement on a property and a setback
requirement. The setback requirement does not allow the property owner to utilize an easement if
it is not being utilized for the purpose on record.

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt an ordinance, which
approves Zoning Ordinance Amendment 2-21 of the Elko City Code specifically Sections 3-
2-2 (Definitions), 3-2-5 (Residential Zoning Districts), 3-2-6 (RB Residential Business
District), and 3-5-4 (Uses Permitted and Minimum Standards), with height limit changes to
a maximum of 15 feet for non-permanent accessory buildings.

Made by Giovanni Puccinelli, seconded by Gratton Miller.



May 4, 2021 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 5

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

After the motion and the vote, Sherry Smith wanted to know if the City would be grandfathering
all the sheds that are currently over easements.

Ms. Rambo explained that she spoke to the City Attorney today and everything that is in
existence right now will become legal non-conforming, which is different than grandfathering
everything in. The difference is that legal non-conforming applies to zoning. Grandfathering
would cause issues with the easements. The City Attorney stated that the City did not want to do
a grandfathering clause because it takes away some of the City’s rights, particularly with
easements.

Ms. Smith asked if they could apply for a variance.

Ms. Rambo stated that they could always apply for a variance. Ms. Rambo clarified to Ms. Smith
that her shed was on an easement. Variances are for zoning issues, not for easement issues. She
told Ms. Smith that they could discuss her options further outside of the meeting.

Mr. Wilkinson pointed out that a vacation would be the correct process for that.

II. REPORTS

A. Summary of City Council Actions.

Ms. Laughlin reported that at the April 13th City Council Meeting they initiated the shadow
ordinance with the Building Department Code sections for accessory structures. On the
27th of April the City Council approved a resolution for a property sale. They also did the
second reading of Ordinance 857, which contains changes to the sidewalk maintenance,
construction, and repair section of code.

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions.

Ms. Laughlin reported that there was a Redevelopment Agency Meeting on April 27th.
There were three items on the agenda. They approved four storefront grants this year.
There was only $50,000 budgeted and they approved $100,000. They denied a change to
the block end design and directed staff to continue with the project for the block ends in
the corridor as it was originally designed. We will come back later and add some raised
pedestals for the art elements later on. They also approved a sign that City Staff had denied
for a property on Silver Street.

C. Professional articles, publications, etc.

1. Zoning Bulletin

D. Miscellaneous Elko County

E. Training



May 4, 2021 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 5

Ms. Laughlin reported that the June Planning Commission would be a live meeting in the
Council Chambers.

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda
and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another
specified date and time. Additionally, the Planning Commission reserves the right to
combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Jeff Dalling, Chairman Tera Hooiman, Secretary



Agenda Item # I.A.1

Created on 5/18/2021 Planning Commission Action Sheet

Elko City Planning Commission
Agenda Action Sheet

1. Review, consideration and possible action on Variance No. 2-21, filed by Catherine
Wines for the Great Basin Child Advocacy Center on behalf of Elko County for a
reduction of the required off street parking stalls from 25 to 18, for a professional
office in an PQP (Public, Quasi-Public) Zoning District, and matters related thereto,
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

2. Meeting Date: June 1, 2021

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes

5. Background Information: The property was conveyed from the City of Elko to Elko
County on May 17, 2021. The applicant has applied for a variance and conditional
use permit for development of the property as a child advocacy center.

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Report

8. Recommended Motion: Conditionally approve Variance No. 2-21 based on the facts,
findings and conditions as presented in the Staff Report dated May 18, 2021

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated May 18, 2021

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner

11. Agenda Distribution: Catherine Wines
421 Railroad Street Ste 208
Elko, NV 89801
catherine@r6studio.com

Tyler Ingram
540 Court Street 2nd Floor
Elko, NV 89801
tingram@elkocountynv.net





Page 1 of 5

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: May 12, 2021
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: June 1, 2021
APPLICATION NUMBER: Variance 2-21
APPLICANT: Catherine Wines for the Great Basin Child

Advocacy Center on behalf of Elko County
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 1401 College Ave.

A variance request from provisions under Section 3-2-17, required off street parking.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND to CONDITIONALLY APPROVE, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as
stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7219



VAR 2-21
Elko County

Page 2 of 5

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-200-002

PARCEL SIZE: 1.314 acres

EXISTING ZONING: PQP-Public, Quasi-Public zoning district

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (PUBLIC) Public/Quasi-Public

EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant land with previous uses consistent with
Public, Quasi-Public uses

BACKGROUND:

1. The property owner is Elko County. Elko County has provided consent for Catherine
Wines to apply for the variance. A deed transfer from City of Elko to Elko County was
recorded on May 17, 2021 Document #787234.

2. The property is currently undeveloped but was previously developed with uses consistent
with PQP uses.

3. The property fronts VFW Drive, College Ave. and Golf Course Road.
4. The property will be served by City of Elko water and sewer and other non-city utilities.

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:

 North: PQP- Public, Quasi, Public / Developed
 East: PQP- Public, Quasi, Public / Developed
 West: PQP- Public, Quasi, Public / Developed
 South: PQP- Public, Quasi, Public / Developed

APPLICABLE MASTER PLAN SECTIONS AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-8 Public, Quasi-Public Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-22 Variances

MASTER PLAN - Land Use:

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Public.
2. PQP-Public, Quasi-Public zoning district is listed as a corresponding zoning district for

Public.
3. Objective 3: Strengthen, preserve, and promote the area around the City Park, City Hall,

and Convention Center as the civic heart of the community.

The approval of the variance is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master
Plan.



VAR 2-21
Elko County

Page 3 of 5

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the redevelopment area and consideration of the plan is not
required.

SECTION 3-2-8 PUBLIC, QUASI-PUBLIC DISTRICT:

1. The proposed use is listed as a principal permitted use in the PQP zoning district.
2. Under the property development standards for permitted principal uses, the minimum

setback from any street line not less than one and one-half (1 ½) times the height of the
principal building.

a. It appears that the proposed new development will meet the street line setback
along College Ave., VFW Drive and Golf Course Road.

3. The minimum setback from interior and rear lot lines shall be not less than the height of
the principal building, plus one additional foot for each five feet (5’) or part thereof that
such building exceeds thirty five feet (35’) in the aggregate horizontal dimension of the
wall generally parallel to such side or rear lot line.

a. It appears that the proposed new development will meet the rear setback.
4. The establishment, expansion or change of any use, including principal permitted uses,

shall be governed by the conditional use permit procedure, as set forth in section 3-2-18
of this chapter.

a. The applicant has applied for a conditional use permit 2-21. The application will
be heard by the Planning Commission at their July 6, 2021 meeting. Approval
will be required for the property to be developed as proposed.

5. Accessory buildings, whether attached or detached, shall be located in accordance with
location on the lot as approved by the Planning Commission. Planning Commission
approved the location of the existing accessory building at their April 3, 2018 meeting.

6. Maximum lot coverage of all buildings shall not exceed thirty five percent (35%) of the
net site area. The proposed development meets this requirement.

The proposed variance with approval of CUP 2-21 is in conformance with Section 3-2-8 of City
Code.

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS:

Elko City Code 3-2-17(F) states that Offices; professional, governmental, banks, savings and
loan agencies are to provide 1 off street parking stall per 300 sq. ft. of usable floor area. The
application states that they would be required 25 parking stalls for their proposed development.
Due to the special circumstances of the use of the building, they are providing 18 parking stalls
and requesting a variance from this section of code.

3-2-17(E)4 allows the Planning Commission to waive all or any portion of an off street parking
requirement, provided that such waiver does not conflict with the purpose and intent of ECC 3-2-
17. A parking waiver was not applied for in this case due to the fact that the property has plenty
of room to provide the 25 parking spaces, based on the use of the property, staff felt a variance
was best suited for the off street parking reduction.

With the approval of variance 2-21 from Elko City Code 3-2-17 reducing the off street parking
requirement from 25 to 18, the proposed development will be in conformance with 3-2-17.

SECTION 3-2-22 VARIANCES:



VAR 2-21
Elko County

Page 4 of 5

B. Procedure: Any person requesting a variance by the planning commission shall include the
following:

Application Requirements

1. There are special circumstances or features, i.e., unusual shape, configuration,
exceptional topographic conditions or other extraordinary situations or conditions
applying to the property under consideration.

 The applicant has stated that there is nothing extraordinary about the property, the
building for this property is unique in that the end user will be children who do
not drive. There will never be more than a few child victims being served at the
building at a time.

 Staff believes that the extraordinary situation is the fact that limited amounts of
staff will be at this building at any given time. Eighteen parking stalls will still be
sufficient enough to meet the needs for all users of the building.

2. The special circumstance or extraordinary situation or condition results in exceptional
practical difficulties or exceptional undue hardships, and where the strict application of
the provision or requirement constitutes an abridgment of property right and deprives the
property owner of reasonable use of property.

 The applicant has stated that the building is required to have secure, private,
outdoor space. A courtyard was included in the design to accommodate this. The
lot is not large enough to accommodate a courtyard design and the required
parking.

 Staff believes that the variance from 3-2-17 is justified based on the unusual
circumstances of the proposed use of the building and limited amount of staff and
users at the building at any given time based on testimony from the applicant.

3. Such special circumstances or conditions do not apply generally to other properties in the
same zoning district.

 The applicant has stated that most buildings do not require large, private, secure
outdoor space for play.

 PQP uses normally have a very high occupant load and therefore require a large
number of parking stalls. This building is not the case and is unique to the PQP
zoning district.

4. The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other
properties in the vicinity, nor be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety and
general welfare.

 The applicant has stated that the building use is totally unique and will likely
never be duplicated in our area.

 Staff believes that the public interest will continue to be served with the reduction
of parking. Based on testimony from the applicant on how the proposed use will
operate, staff believes that 18 parking stalls is sufficient.

5. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the
zoning ordinance or effect a change of land use or zoning classification.



VAR 2-21
Elko County

Page 5 of 5

 The applicant has stated that the intent of the code is to provide enough parking to
accommodate the users. A good portion of the building users are children that do
not drive and don’t need a parking space. The applicant also stated that the
building fits in to current land use and zoning requirements.

 Staff believes that if the property ever changed use, there is substantial amount of
landscaping which could be converted to future parking if there was a need.

6. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair affected natural resources.

 The applicant has stated that no natural resources will be affected.

FINDINGS

1. The proposed variance approval is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan.

2. The property is not located within the redevelopment area and consideration of the plan is
not required.

3. The proposed variance with the approval of CUP 2-21 is in conformance with Section 3-
2-8 of City Code.

4. The approval of variance 2-21 from Elko City Code 3-2-17 reducing the off-street
parking requirement from 25 to 18 is required for the proposed development to be in
conformance with 3-2-17.

5. The special circumstance is directly related to the use of the property being a public use
with limited need for parking.

6. The exceptional practical difficulty is directly related to the use of the property.

7. The special circumstance of reduced parking needs does not generally apply to other
properties in the district.

8. The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other
properties in the vicinity.

9. The granting of the variance is directly related to proposed use of the property and will
not impair the intent or purpose of the zoning and will not change the use of the land or
zoning classification.

10. The granting of the variance will not impair natural resources.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

1. Approval of Conditional Use Permit 2-21.







Catherine Wines for the Great Basin Child Advocacy Center and Elko County
421 Railroad Street  Elko, Nevada 89801

775-738-7829
Elko County

571 Idaho Street  Elko, Nevada 89801

1401 College Ave   Elko, Nevada 89801001-200-002
TBD

TBD



Requesting varience from Elko City Code 3-2-17(F) to reduce the number of required parking spaces. 25

PQP

There is nothing extrordinary about the property, the building for this property is 

unique in that the end user will be children who do not drive. There will never be 

more than a few child victims being served at the building at a time.

The building is required to have secure, private, outdoor space. A courtyard was 

included in the design to accomodate this. The lot is not large enough to accomodate 

a courtyard design and the required parking. 

The courtyard is the most efficient design to accomodate a private, outdoor play area.

Most buildings do not require large, private, secure out door space for play. 

spaces are required, we have 18 planned in the current design.  



included in the design to accomodate this. The lot is not large enough to accomodate 

This building use is totally unique and will likely never be duplicated in our

area.

The intent of the code is to provide enough parking to accomodate the users. 

A good portion of the building users are children that do not drive and don’t 

need a parking space. 

The building fits in to current land use and zoning requirements. 

No natural resources will be affected. 

The intended schedule, at this time, is to begin constrcution in the fall of 2021 and be complete by

the summer of 2022. Financing is still being secured.



X 

X 

X 

X 

Catherine Wines, Architect

421 Railroad Street ste 208

Elko, Nevada 89801

775-738-7829

catherine@r6studio.com

Shelby Archuleta
Text Box
2-21

Shelby Archuleta
Text Box


Shelby Archuleta
Text Box
5/11/21

Shelby Archuleta
Text Box
No Charge

Shelby Archuleta
Text Box








P
L
O
丁
P
L
A
N

画
調

霞

G
r
e
a
t
 
B
a
s
j
n
 
C
間
A
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 
C
e
n
t
e
「

1
4
3
5
 
C
o
=
e
g
e
 
A
v
e
n
u
e

E
i
k
o
,
 
N
e
v
a
d
a

鞄
盈

姉
P
O
 
B
O
X
 
2
5
6
1
,
 
〔

L
K
O
,
 
N
V
 
8
9
8
0
0

e
.
i
a
請

n
@
b
i
a
c
k
d
o
囲

い
[
∨

.
0
0
m

け
75

) 
93

4・
51

 1
4

丁

S O 「 一 〇 〇 > 「 「 「 - 巾 ○ ○ S

( 〔 × - S 一 三 G )

S 工 面 調 書 之 > ≡ m

P 刀 ○ 需 〇 十 三 > 三 田

囲 晴

〇 〇 三 S U 〇 十 > 三 十



関
因

G
r
e
a
t
 
B
a
s
i
n
 
C
h
囲

A
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 
C
e
n
t
e
「

1
4
3
5
 
C
o
i
i
e
g
e
 
A
v
e
n
u
e

E
i
k
o
,
 
N
e
v
a
d
a

B
u
=
d
i
n
g
 
E
I
e
v
a
t
i
o
n
s

せ 轟 講 評 : 1

醒 閣 間 隔 - ∵

轟 は 厚 く 1 i

轟 け 恒 - i

牟 雑 ぜ 塵 i i

S O U 三 s O 書 a 二 重 d s i d 〇 一 B u 量 つ g 黒 く a き つ

S 8 碧 雲 の 。 = 三 年 ・ 〇 ° 之 ° 一 ∽ 色 の 口 「 筆 舌 s

琵 顕 董 百

〇 室 町 蓋 書 面 ∽ - 重 責 雪

志 一 刀 と 「 R O > ロ S 「 R 同 筆 S . 吊 ~ 霊

巾 「 K ○ ○ N の く A e > 程 雲 一

p コ ∽ . 毒 害 恵 竺 葛 生 重 量 三

重 ミ . 刀 8 「 ∪ 〇 一 〇 . 8 ∋
圏

冨 O 尋 葺 合 雪 8 ぎ ー 窓 ∞ 毒

手 雷 の 冨 ○ 重 言 三 〇 ) 鑓 霊 阜 〇 〇 号 つ き 雲 「 鏡 一

重 で 亡 i C 口 舌 . 憲 「 百 害 恵 め

警 官 一 言 壷 轡 吾 三 三 号 「 8 登 墾

P 刀 O 」 巾 〇 十 之 > 三 和

閏 閑 閣 開 聞

① 罷 韓 慎 一

金 韓 唐 音 -

韓 偉 i i 音

や 粥 博 膚

+ 一 誰 や

」 - 恰 撃

i 喜 怒 茸

i i i 号 韮 奇

唐 虻 詫 辞 令

S 工 面 叩 「 Z > ≡ 叩

言 s 一 三 「 ≦ s 幕 一 帥 一 d i コ g 若 く a き つ

∽ 包 〇 ・ 雲 の 言 一 - ・ e “ ・ 口 〇 三 〇 【 ∽ 蜜 e 署 誉 烏

口 > 「 和

牛 云 . 富 里

細 萱 一 s ミ 享 ∃ i つ g p 8 一 s i d の 一 B u 責 つ g 若 く a ( i O コ

∽ 鍵 一 ① ‥ 茎 の “ = 一 〇 も “ ・ g N 〇 一 ∽ 戴 き 口 重 く i コ 携

S 工 面 巾 十 三 U ≡ B 巾 刀

圏 喜

田 ○ 吾 ~ 一 室 ・ 容 〇 . 〇 O め 露 -



Agenda Item # I.B.1.

Created on 05/14/2021 Planning Commission Action Sheet

Elko City Planning Commission
Agenda Action Sheet

1. Review, consideration and possible approval of Final Map No. 2-21, filed by
Jordanelle Third Mortgage, LLC for the development of a subdivision entitled
Zephyr Heights Unit 1 involving the proposed division of approximately 25.1 acres
of property into 18 lots for residential development and 1 remainder lot within the R
(Multiple-Family and Single-Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

2. Meeting Date: June 1, 2021

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes

5. Background Information: Subject property is located on the east side of East Jennings
Way generally east of Puccinelli Parkway. (APN 001-562-010)

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Staff Report, Approved Construction Plans,
Application

8. Recommended Motion: Recommend that the City Council accept, on behalf of the
public, the parcels of land offered for dedication for public use in conformity with
the terms of the offer of dedication; that the final map substantially complies with
the tentative map; that the City Council approve the agreement to install
improvements in accordance with the approved construction plans that satisfies the
requirements of Title 2 Chapter 3, and conditionally approve Final Map 2-21 with
findings and conditions listed in the Staff Report dated May 14, 2021.

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated May 14, 2021

10. Prepared By: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager

11. Agenda Distribution: Jordanelle Third Mortgage, LLC
Attn: Scott Macritchie
312 Four Mile Trail
Elko, NV 89801

High Desert Engineering
Attn: Tom Ballew
640aho Street
Elko, NV 89801





Page 1 of 8

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: May 14, 2021
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: June 1, 2021
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.B.1.
APPLICATION NUMBER: Final Map 2-21
APPLICANT: Jordanelle Third Mortgage, LLC
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Zephyr Heights Unit 1

A Final Map for the division of approximately 25.1 acres into 18 lots for residential
development and 1 remainder lot within an R (Single-Family and Multiple-Family
Residential) zoning district.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND CONDITIONAL APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated
in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



Final Map 2-21
Zephyr Heights Unit 1

Page 2 of 8

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-562-010

PARCEL SIZE: 25.1 Acres

EXISTING ZONING: (R) Single-Family and Multiple-Family Residential.

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-HD) Residential High Density

EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant

BACKGROUND:

1. The Final Map for Zephyr Heights Unit 1 has been presented before expiration of the
subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City code.

2. The Planning Commission reviewed and recommended a conditional approval to the City
Council on the Zephyr Heights Tentative Map on February 2, 2021.

3. The City Council conditionally approved the Zephyr Heights Tentative Map on February
23, 2021.

4. The subdivision is located on APN 001-562-010.
5. The proposed subdivision consists of 18 residential lots and a remainder lot for future

development.
6. The total subdivided area is approximately 25.1 acres. Unit 1 consists of 7.334 acres.
7. The proposed density is 2.45 units per acre.
8. Approximately 1.218 acres are offered for dedication for street development.
9. Drainage and utility easements are provided along all lot lines.
10. The property is located on the east side of East Jennings Way generally east of Puccinelli

Parkway.

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:
 North: Single-Family and Multiple-Family Residential (R) / Vacant
 South: General Commercial (C) / Partially Developed
 East: Industrial Commercial (IC) / Developed
 West: Single-Family Residential (R1) / Partially Developed

Single-Family and Multiple-Family Residential (R) / Partially Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is an undeveloped residential parcel.
 The site abuts vacant residential land to the north, developed residential land to the west

and southwest, apartments and other partially developed commercial land to the south,
and developed industrial commercial property to the east.

 The parcel has many slopes, but generally drains to the south.  The slopes have been
incorporated into the tentative map design where possible, but a large amount of grading



Final Map 2-21
Zephyr Heights Unit 1

Page 3 of 8

will be required and several large manufactured slopes will be created.
 The property will be accessed by two roads off of East Jennings Way.

APPLICABLE MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-3-7 Final Map State (Stage III)
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-3-8 Content and Format of Final Map Submittal
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-3-9 to 3-3-16 (Inclusive) Subdivision Design Standards
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-3-17 to 3-3-22 (Inclusive) Public Improvements/

Guarantees
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), and 3-2-17 Zoning Code

Standards
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

MASTER PLAN - Land use:

Conformance with the Land Use component of the Master Plan was evaluated with review and
approval of the Tentative Map.  The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

Therefore, the proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan.

MASTER PLAN - Transportation:

Conformance with the Transportation component of the Master Plan was evaluated with review
and approval of the Tentative Map.  The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

Therefore, the proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the
Master Plan.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the redevelopment area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

The property is located within the 20-year capture zone for multiple City of Elko wells.
Development of the site is required to be connected to a programmed sewer system and all street
drainage will be directed to a storm sewer system.

As the project is designed, it does not present a hazard to City wells.

SECTION 3-3-7 FINAL MAP STAGE (STAGE III):

Pre-submission Requirements (C)(1) – The Final Map is in conformance with the zoning
requirements.

Pre-submission Requirements (C)(2) – The proposed Final Map conforms to the Tentative
Map.



Final Map 2-21
Zephyr Heights Unit 1

Page 4 of 8

SECTION 3-3-8 CONTENT AND FORMAT OF FINAL MAP SUBMITTAL:

A. Form and Content – The Final Map conforms to the required size specifications and
provides the appropriate affidavits and certifications.

B. Identification Data
1. The Final Map identifies the subdivision and provides its location by section,

township, range, and county.
2. The Final Map was prepared by a properly licensed surveyor.
3. The Final Map provides a scale, north arrow, and date of preparation.

C. Survey Data
1. The boundaries of the subdivision are fully balanced and closed.
2. Any exceptions are noted on the Final Map.
3. The Final Map is tied to a section corner.
4. The location and description of any physical encroachments upon the boundary of

the subdivision are noted on the Final Map.
D. Descriptive Data

1. The name, right-of-way lines, courses, lengths, and widths of all streets and
easements are noted on the Final Map.

2. All drainage ways are noted on the Final Map.
3. All utility and public service easements are noted on the Final Map.
4. The location and dimensions of all lots, parcels, and exceptions are shown on the

Final Map.
5. All residential lots are numbered consecutively on the Final Map.
6. There are no sites dedicated to the public shown on the Final Map.
7. The locations of adjoining subdivisions are noted on the Final Map with required

information.
8. There are no deed restrictions proposed.

E. Dedication and Acknowledgment
1. The owner’s certificate has the required dedication information for all easements

and right-of-ways.
2. The execution of dedication is acknowledged with space to be certified by a

notary public.
F. Additional Information

1. All centerline monuments for streets are noted as being set on the Final Map.
2. The centerline and width of each right-of-way is noted on the Final Map.
3. The Final Map indicates the location of monuments that will be set to determine

the boundaries of the subdivision.
4. The length and bearing of each lot line is identified on the Final Map.
5. The Final Map is not located adjacent to a city boundary.
6. The Final Map identifies the location of the section lines nearest the property.

G. City to Check
1. Closure calculations have been provided. Civil improvement plans have been

approved. Drainage plans have been approved.  An engineer’s estimate has been
provided.

2. The lot closures are within the required tolerances.



Final Map 2-21
Zephyr Heights Unit 1

Page 5 of 8

H. Required Certifications
1. The Owner’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map.
2. The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all right-of-ways shown on the Final

Map.
3. A Clerk Certificate is shown on the Final Map, certifying the signature of the City

Council.
4. The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all easements shown on the Final

Map.
5. A Surveyor’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map and provides the required

language.
6. The City Engineer’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map.
7. A certificate from the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection is provided

with the required language.
8. The engineer of record has submitted the Tentative Map and construction plans to

the state, but no written approval has been received.
9. A certificate from the Division of Water Resources is provided on the Final Map

with the required language.
10. The construction plans identify the required water meters for the subdivision.

SECTION 3-3-9 THROUGH 3-3-16 (INCLUSIVE)

The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of code
during the Tentative Map process.

The proposed development conforms with these sections of City code.

SECTION 3-3-17 RESPONSIBILITY FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

The subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in conformance with this
section of City code.

SECTION 3-3-18 CONSTRUCTION PLANS

The subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all
required permits in accordance with this section of City code. The plans have been approved by
City staff.

SECTION 3-3-19 CONSTRUCTION AND INSPECTION

The subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all permits
in accordance with this section of City code.

SECTION 3-3-20 REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS

The subdivider has submitted civil improvement plans which are in conformance with this
section of City code.



Final Map 2-21
Zephyr Heights Unit 1

Page 6 of 8

Civil improvements include curb, gutter, and sidewalk as well as lighting, USPS gang boxes,
paving, and utilities within the East Jennings Way, Mesquite Way, and Incline Avenue rights-of-
way.

SECTION 3-3-21 AGREEMENT TO INSTALL IMPROVEMENTS

The subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to this section
of City code.

SECTION 3-3-22 PERFORMANCE AND MAINTENANCE GUARANTEES

The subdivider will be required to provide a Performance and Maintenance Guarantee as
stipulated in the Performance Agreement in conformance with this section of City code.

SECTIONS 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), AND 3-2-17

The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of code
during the Tentative Map process.

The proposed development conforms with these sections of City code.

SECTION 3-8 FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT:

This parcel is not designated in a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).

FINDINGS

1. The Final Map for Zephyr Heights Unit 1 has been presented before expiration of the
subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City code.

2. The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

3. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use and Transportation
Components of the Master Plan.

4. The proposed development conforms with Sections 3-3-9 through 3-3-16 (inclusive).

5. The Subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in conformance with
Section 3-3-17 of City code.

6. The Subdivider has submitted construction plans in conformance with Section 3-3-18 of
City code.

7. The Subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all
required permits in accordance with the requirements of Section 3-3-19 of City code.

8. The Subdivider has submitted construction plans which, having been found to be in
conformance with Section 3-3-20 of City code, have been approved by City staff.



Final Map 2-21
Zephyr Heights Unit 1

Page 7 of 8

9. The Subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to
Section 3-3-21 of City code.

10. The Subdivider will be required to provide a Performance and Maintenance Guarantee as
stipulated in the Performance Agreement in conformance with Section 3-3-22 of City
code.

11. The proposed development conforms to Sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), 3-2-
17, and 3-8 of City code.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION/CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

Development Department:

1. The Developer shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Agreement in accordance
with Section 3-3-21 of City code.  The Performance Agreement shall be secured in
accordance with Section 3-3-22 of City code.  In conformance with Section 3-3-21 of
City code, the public improvements shall be completed within a time of no later than two
(2) years of the date of Final Map approval by the City Council unless extended as
stipulated in City code.

2. The Performance and Maintenance Agreement shall be approved by the City Council.

3. The Developer shall enter into the Performance and Maintenance Agreement within 30
days of approval of the Final Map by the City Council.

4. The Final Map for Zephyr Heights Unit 1 is approved for 18 residential lots and 1
remainder lot.

5. The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter for the subdivision upon approval
of the Final Map by the City Council.

6. Site disturbance shall not commence prior to approval of the project’s construction plans
by the Nevada Department of Environmental Protection.

7. Site disturbance, including clearing and grubbing, shall not commence prior to the
issuance of a grading permit by the City of Elko.

8. Construction shall not commence prior to Final Map approval by the City Council and
issuance of a will-serve letter by the City of Elko.

9. Conformance with the conditions of approval of the Tentative Map is required.

10. The Owner/Developer is to provide the appropriate contact information for the qualified
engineer and engineering firm contracted to oversee the project along with the required
inspection and testing necessary to produce an As-Built for submittal to the City of Elko.
The Engineer of Record is to ensure all materials meet the latest edition of the Standard



Final Map 2-21
Zephyr Heights Unit 1

Page 8 of 8

Specifications for Public Works.  The Engineer of Record is to certify that the project
was completed in conformance with the approved plans and specifications.

11. Add note to the Final Map prohibiting access from Lots 1 and 18 to East Jennings Way
prior to City Council consideration.

12. All slopes greater than 3:1 shall be permanently stabilized prior to acceptance of any
public improvements by the City Council.

Engineering Department:

13. Remove Note 7 on Sheet 2 regarding slope easements prior to City Council
consideration..

Public Works Department

14. All public improvements to be constructed per City of Elko code at time of development.













 
 

LOT CALCULATIONS 
 

FOR 
 

ZEPHYR HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION 
UNIT 1 

ELKO, NEVADA 
 
 
 

PREPARED FOR: 
 

Jordanelle Third Mortgage, LLC 
312 Four Mile Trail 
Elko, Nevada  89801 

 
Contact: 

Scott MacRitchie 
 (775) 340-6005 

 
 

 
PREPARED BY 

 
HIGH DESERT Engineering 

640 Idaho Street 
Elko, Nevada 

 
April, 2021



page 1 
 

Parcel name: SUBDIVISION 
 
        North: 28480439.203          East : 610180.761       
Curve  Length: 226.11               Radius: 860.00      
        Delta: 15-03-52            Tangent: 113.71           
        Chord: 225.46               Course: N 02-16-01 E 
    Course In: N 80-12-03 W     Course Out: N 84-44-05 E 
    RP  North: 28480585.571          East : 609333.309       
    End North: 28480664.491          East : 610189.680       
Line  Course: N 05-15-55 W  Length: 1071.21          
        North: 28481731.181          East : 610091.378       
Curve  Length: 352.53               Radius: 550.00      
        Delta: 36-43-28            Tangent: 182.56           
        Chord: 346.53               Course: N 23-37-39 W 
    Course In: S 84-44-05 W     Course Out: N 48-00-37 E 
    RP  North: 28481680.709          East : 609543.699       
    End North: 28482048.658          East : 609952.494       
Line  Course: N 37-05-21 E  Length: 223.41           
        North: 28482226.871          East : 610087.223       
Line  Course: S 89-35-40 E  Length: 832.90           
        North: 28482220.976          East : 610920.102       
Line  Course: S 42-32-34 W  Length: 206.48           
        North: 28482068.847          East : 610780.493       
Curve  Length: 595.34               Radius: 380.00      
        Delta: 89-45-52            Tangent: 378.44           
        Chord: 536.30               Course: S 09-05-30 W 
    Course In: S 54-12-34 W     Course Out: S 36-01-34 E 
    RP  North: 28481846.614          East : 610472.252       
    End North: 28481539.289          East : 610695.751       
Line  Course: S 54-38-16 E  Length: 430.47           
        North: 28481290.158          East : 611046.803       
Line  Course: S 45-30-12 W  Length: 394.58           
        North: 28481013.609          East : 610765.352       
Line  Course: S 45-30-12 W  Length: 819.57           
        North: 28480439.199          East : 610180.760       
Line  Course: N 09-52-09 E  Length: 0.00             
        North: 28480439.199          East : 610180.760       
 
   Perimeter: 5152.61   Area: 1,093,740 S.F. 25.109 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.005                Course: S 13-36-44 W 
  Error North: -0.0045               East : -0.0011          
Precision  1: 1,030,520.00     
 
 
  



page 2 
 

Parcel name: UNIT 1 REMAINDER 
 
   North: 28480936.090        East : 610164.649       
Line  Course: N 05-15-55 W  Length: 798.46           
        North: 28481731.181          East : 610091.377       
Curve  Length: 352.53               Radius: 550.00      
        Delta: 36-43-28            Tangent: 182.56           
        Chord: 346.53               Course: N 23-37-39 W 
    Course In: S 84-44-05 W     Course Out: N 48-00-37 E 
    RP  North: 28481680.709          East : 609543.698       
    End North: 28482048.657          East : 609952.493       
Line  Course: N 37-05-21 E  Length: 223.41           
        North: 28482226.871          East : 610087.222       
Line  Course: S 89-35-40 E  Length: 832.90           
        North: 28482220.976          East : 610920.101       
Line  Course: S 42-32-34 W  Length: 206.48           
        North: 28482068.847          East : 610780.492       
Curve  Length: 595.34               Radius: 380.00      
        Delta: 89-45-52            Tangent: 378.44           
        Chord: 536.30               Course: S 09-05-30 W 
    Course In: S 54-12-34 W     Course Out: S 36-01-34 E 
    RP  North: 28481846.614          East : 610472.251       
    End North: 28481539.289          East : 610695.749       
Line  Course: S 54-38-16 E  Length: 136.37           
        North: 28481460.366          East : 610806.960       
Line  Course: S 51-07-06 W  Length: 440.05           
        North: 28481184.140          East : 610464.406       
Line  Course: S 84-44-05 W  Length: 55.27            
        North: 28481179.068          East : 610409.369       
Line  Course: S 05-15-55 E  Length: 174.50           
        North: 28481005.305          East : 610425.383       
Line  Course: S 84-44-05 W  Length: 158.00           
        North: 28480990.805          East : 610268.049       
Line  Course: S 05-15-55 E  Length: 45.00            
        North: 28480945.995          East : 610272.179       
Line  Course: S 84-44-05 W  Length: 108.00           
        North: 28480936.084          East : 610164.635       
 
   Perimeter: 4126.31   Area: 774,268 S.F. 17.775 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.016                Course: S 69-13-34 W 
  Error North: -0.0055               East : -0.0145          
Precision  1: 257,894.38       
 
 
  



page 3 
 

Parcel name: UNIT 1 
 
        North: 28480439.203          East : 610180.761       
Curve  Length: 226.11               Radius: 860.00      
        Delta: 15-03-52            Tangent: 113.71           
        Chord: 225.46               Course: N 02-16-01 E 
    Course In: N 80-12-03 W     Course Out: N 84-44-05 E 
    RP  North: 28480585.571          East : 609333.309       
    End North: 28480664.491          East : 610189.680       
Line  Course: N 05-15-55 W  Length: 272.75           
        North: 28480936.090          East : 610164.650       
Line  Course: N 84-44-05 E  Length: 108.00           
        North: 28480946.001          East : 610272.195       
Line  Course: N 05-15-55 W  Length: 45.00            
        North: 28480990.811          East : 610268.065       
Line  Course: N 84-44-05 E  Length: 158.00           
        North: 28481005.310          East : 610425.398       
Line  Course: N 05-15-55 W  Length: 174.50           
        North: 28481179.074          East : 610409.385       
Line  Course: N 84-44-05 E  Length: 55.27            
        North: 28481184.146          East : 610464.422       
Line  Course: N 51-07-06 E  Length: 440.05           
        North: 28481460.372          East : 610806.976       
Line  Course: S 54-38-16 E  Length: 294.10           
        North: 28481290.163          East : 611046.817       
Line  Course: S 45-30-12 W  Length: 1214.15          
        North: 28480439.204          East : 610180.775       
 
   Perimeter: 2987.93   Area: 319,472 S.F. 7.334 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.013                Course: N 85-39-05 E 
  Error North: 0.0010                East : 0.0134           
Precision  1: 229,840.77       
 
 
  



page 4 
 

Parcel name: UNIT 1 STREETS 
 
   North: 28480783.238        East : 610178.736       
Line  Course: N 05-15-55 W  Length: 81.00            
        North: 28480863.896          East : 610171.303       
Curve  Length: 24.35                Radius: 15.50       
        Delta: 90-00-00            Tangent: 15.50            
        Chord: 21.92                Course: S 50-15-55 E 
    Course In: N 84-44-05 E     Course Out: S 05-15-55 E 
    RP  North: 28480865.318          East : 610186.737       
    End North: 28480849.884          East : 610188.160       
Line  Course: N 84-44-05 E  Length: 77.00            
        North: 28480856.950          East : 610264.835       
Curve  Length: 24.35                Radius: 15.50       
        Delta: 90-00-00            Tangent: 15.50            
        Chord: 21.92                Course: N 39-44-05 E 
    Course In: N 05-15-55 W     Course Out: N 84-44-05 E 
    RP  North: 28480872.384          East : 610263.412       
    End North: 28480873.807          East : 610278.847       
Line  Course: N 05-15-55 W  Length: 117.50           
        North: 28480990.811          East : 610268.064       
Line  Course: N 84-44-05 E  Length: 50.00            
        North: 28480995.399          East : 610317.853       
Line  Course: S 05-15-55 E  Length: 114.81           
        North: 28480881.074          East : 610328.389       
Curve  Length: 29.03                Radius: 15.50       
        Delta: 107-17-38           Tangent: 21.06            
        Chord: 24.97                Course: S 58-54-44 E 
    Course In: N 84-44-05 E     Course Out: S 22-33-33 E 
    RP  North: 28480882.496          East : 610343.824       
    End North: 28480868.182          East : 610349.770       
Curve  Length: 37.14                Radius: 75.00       
        Delta: 28-22-19            Tangent: 18.96            
        Chord: 36.76                Course: N 53-15-18 E 
    Course In: N 22-33-33 W     Course Out: S 50-55-52 E 
    RP  North: 28480937.443          East : 610320.997       
    End North: 28480890.174          East : 610379.226       
Line  Course: N 39-04-08 E  Length: 204.20           
        North: 28481048.713          East : 610507.924       
Curve  Length: 49.59                Radius: 275.00      
        Delta: 10-19-54            Tangent: 24.86            
        Chord: 49.52                Course: N 44-14-05 E 
    Course In: S 50-55-52 E     Course Out: N 40-35-58 W 
    RP  North: 28480875.393          East : 610721.431       
    End North: 28481084.194          East : 610542.470       
Line  Course: N 49-24-02 E  Length: 293.23           
        North: 28481275.019          East : 610765.113       
Curve  Length: 248.23               Radius: 54.50       
        Delta: 260-57-32           Tangent: 63.86            
        Chord: 82.91                Course: S 00-07-12 E 
    Course In: S 40-35-58 E     Course Out: S 40-21-34 W 
    RP  North: 28481233.638          East : 610800.580       
    End North: 28481192.109          East : 610765.287       
 
 
 
  



page 5 
 

Parcel name: UNIT 1 STREETS – Con’t 
 
Curve  Length: 21.90                Radius: 15.50       
        Delta: 80-57-32            Tangent: 13.23            
        Chord: 20.12                Course: S 89-52-48 W 
    Course In: S 40-21-34 W     Course Out: N 40-35-58 W 
    RP  North: 28481180.298          East : 610755.250       
    End North: 28481192.067          East : 610745.163       
Line  Course: S 49-24-02 W  Length: 224.10           
        North: 28481046.230          East : 610575.009       
Curve  Length: 40.57                Radius: 225.00      
        Delta: 10-19-54            Tangent: 20.34            
        Chord: 40.52                Course: S 44-14-05 W 
    Course In: S 40-35-58 E     Course Out: N 50-55-52 W 
    RP  North: 28480875.393          East : 610721.431       
    End North: 28481017.200          East : 610546.744       
Line  Course: S 39-04-08 W  Length: 204.20           
        North: 28480858.661          East : 610418.046       
Curve  Length: 99.63                Radius: 125.00      
        Delta: 45-39-57            Tangent: 52.63            
        Chord: 97.01                Course: S 61-54-06 W 
    Course In: N 50-55-52 W     Course Out: S 05-15-55 E 
    RP  North: 28480937.443          East : 610320.997       
    End North: 28480812.971          East : 610332.468       
Line  Course: S 84-44-05 W  Length: 140.31           
        North: 28480800.095          East : 610192.750       
Curve  Length: 24.35                Radius: 15.50       
        Delta: 90-00-00            Tangent: 15.50            
        Chord: 21.92                Course: S 39-44-05 W 
    Course In: S 05-15-55 E     Course Out: S 84-44-05 W 
    RP  North: 28480784.660          East : 610194.172       
    End North: 28480783.238          East : 610178.738       
 
   Perimeter: 2105.47   Area: 53,073 S.F. 1.218 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.002                Course: N 85-50-30 E 
  Error North: 0.0001                East : 0.0020           
Precision  1: 1,052,745.00     
 
 
  



page 6 
 

Parcel name: LOT 1 
 
        North: 28480439.203          East : 610180.761       
Curve  Length: 226.11               Radius: 860.00      
        Delta: 15-03-52            Tangent: 113.71           
        Chord: 225.46               Course: N 02-16-01 E 
    Course In: N 80-12-03 W     Course Out: N 84-44-05 E 
    RP  North: 28480585.571          East : 609333.309       
    End North: 28480664.491          East : 610189.680       
Line  Course: N 05-15-56 W  Length: 119.25           
        North: 28480783.238          East : 610178.736       
Curve  Length: 24.35                Radius: 15.50       
        Delta: 90-00-00            Tangent: 15.50            
        Chord: 21.92                Course: N 39-44-05 E 
    Course In: N 84-44-05 E     Course Out: N 05-15-55 W 
    RP  North: 28480784.660          East : 610194.171       
    End North: 28480800.095          East : 610192.748       
Line  Course: N 84-44-05 E  Length: 90.50            
        North: 28480808.400          East : 610282.866       
Line  Course: S 05-15-55 E  Length: 247.59           
        North: 28480561.854          East : 610305.587       
Line  Course: S 45-30-12 W  Length: 175.00           
        North: 28480439.203          East : 610180.761       
 
   Perimeter: 882.80   Area: 32,610 S.F. 0.749 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.001                Course: S 29-40-26 W 
  Error North: -0.0009               East : -0.0005          
Precision  1: 882,800.00       
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 2 
 
   North: 28480808.400        East : 610282.866       
Line  Course: N 84-44-05 E  Length: 49.81            
        North: 28480812.971          East : 610332.466       
Curve  Length: 26.89                Radius: 125.00      
        Delta: 12-19-35            Tangent: 13.50            
        Chord: 26.84                Course: N 78-34-17 E 
    Course In: N 05-15-55 W     Course Out: S 17-35-30 E 
    RP  North: 28480937.443          East : 610320.995       
    End North: 28480818.289          East : 610358.774       
Line  Course: S 17-35-34 E  Length: 163.31           
        North: 28480662.617          East : 610408.134       
Line  Course: S 45-30-12 W  Length: 143.77           
        North: 28480561.853          East : 610305.584       
Line  Course: N 05-15-55 W  Length: 247.59           
        North: 28480808.399          East : 610282.864       
 
   Perimeter: 631.37   Area: 19,854 S.F. 0.456 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.003                Course: S 63-59-13 W 
  Error North: -0.0011               East : -0.0023          
Precision  1: 210,456.67       
  



page 7 
 

Parcel name: LOT 3 
 
        North: 28480818.289          East : 610358.776       
Curve  Length: 64.07                Radius: 125.00      
        Delta: 29-22-09            Tangent: 32.76            
        Chord: 63.37                Course: N 57-43-26 E 
    Course In: N 17-35-30 W     Course Out: S 46-57-39 E 
    RP  North: 28480937.444          East : 610320.997       
    End North: 28480852.131          East : 610412.358       
Line  Course: S 44-29-48 E  Length: 132.22           
        North: 28480757.820          East : 610505.027       
Line  Course: S 45-30-12 W  Length: 135.84           
        North: 28480662.614          East : 610408.133       
Line  Course: N 17-35-34 W  Length: 163.31           
        North: 28480818.286          East : 610358.773       
 
   Perimeter: 495.44   Area: 13,813 S.F. 0.317 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.005                Course: S 42-47-31 W 
  Error North: -0.0034               East : -0.0031          
Precision  1: 99,088.00        
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 4 
 
        North: 28480852.131          East : 610412.358       
Curve  Length: 8.66                 Radius: 125.00      
        Delta: 3-58-13             Tangent: 4.33             
        Chord: 8.66                 Course: N 41-03-14 E 
    Course In: N 46-57-39 W     Course Out: S 50-55-52 E 
    RP  North: 28480937.444          East : 610320.997       
    End North: 28480858.662          East : 610418.046       
Line  Course: N 39-04-08 E  Length: 73.83            
        North: 28480915.983          East : 610464.577       
Line  Course: S 44-29-48 E  Length: 141.17           
        North: 28480815.287          East : 610563.519       
Line  Course: S 45-30-12 W  Length: 82.00            
        North: 28480757.816          East : 610505.029       
Line  Course: N 44-29-48 W  Length: 132.22           
        North: 28480852.127          East : 610412.360       
 
   Perimeter: 437.88   Area: 11,197 S.F. 0.257 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.004                Course: S 30-09-43 E 
  Error North: -0.0039               East : 0.0022           
Precision  1: 109,470.00       
 
 
  



page 8 
 

Parcel name: LOT 5 
 
   North: 28480915.984        East : 610464.578       
Line  Course: N 39-04-08 E  Length: 82.52            
        North: 28480980.051          East : 610516.587       
Line  Course: S 44-29-48 E  Length: 150.41           
        North: 28480872.765          East : 610622.004       
Line  Course: S 45-30-12 W  Length: 82.00            
        North: 28480815.294          East : 610563.514       
Line  Course: N 44-29-48 W  Length: 141.17           
        North: 28480915.989          East : 610464.573       
 
   Perimeter: 456.10   Area: 11,955 S.F. 0.274 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.008                Course: N 43-07-47 W 
  Error North: 0.0056                East : -0.0053          
Precision  1: 57,012.50        
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 6 
 
   North: 28480980.051        East : 610516.586       
Line  Course: N 39-04-08 E  Length: 43.33            
        North: 28481013.692          East : 610543.895       
Curve  Length: 39.01                Radius: 275.00      
        Delta: 8-07-37             Tangent: 19.54            
        Chord: 38.97                Course: N 43-07-57 E 
    Course In: S 50-55-52 E     Course Out: N 42-48-15 W 
    RP  North: 28480840.372          East : 610757.402       
    End North: 28481042.134          East : 610570.541       
Line  Course: S 44-29-48 E  Length: 156.88           
        North: 28480930.233          East : 610680.493       
Line  Course: S 45-30-12 W  Length: 82.00            
        North: 28480872.762          East : 610622.003       
Line  Course: N 44-29-48 W  Length: 150.41           
        North: 28480980.048          East : 610516.586       
 
   Perimeter: 471.63   Area: 12,677 S.F. 0.291 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.003                Course: S 08-50-13 W 
  Error North: -0.0030               East : -0.0005          
Precision  1: 157,210.00       
 
 
  



page 9 
 

Parcel name: LOT 7 
 
        North: 28481042.136          East : 610570.543       
Curve  Length: 10.58                Radius: 275.00      
        Delta: 2-12-17             Tangent: 5.29             
        Chord: 10.58                Course: N 48-17-54 E 
    Course In: S 42-48-15 E     Course Out: N 40-35-58 W 
    RP  North: 28480840.374          East : 610757.404       
    End North: 28481049.175          East : 610578.443       
Line  Course: N 49-24-02 E  Length: 73.10            
        North: 28481096.746          East : 610633.946       
Line  Course: S 44-29-48 E  Length: 151.40           
        North: 28480988.754          East : 610740.058       
Line  Course: S 45-30-12 W  Length: 83.50            
        North: 28480930.232          East : 610680.498       
Line  Course: N 44-29-48 W  Length: 156.88           
        North: 28481042.133          East : 610570.546       
 
   Perimeter: 475.46   Area: 12,878 S.F. 0.296 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.004                Course: S 39-36-13 E 
  Error North: -0.0033               East : 0.0028           
Precision  1: 118,865.00       
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 8 
 
   North: 28481096.747        East : 610633.947       
Line  Course: N 49-24-02 E  Length: 82.19            
        North: 28481150.233          East : 610696.352       
Line  Course: S 44-29-48 E  Length: 145.81           
        North: 28481046.228          East : 610798.545       
Line  Course: S 45-30-12 W  Length: 82.00            
        North: 28480988.757          East : 610740.055       
Line  Course: N 44-29-48 W  Length: 151.40           
        North: 28481096.749          East : 610633.944       
 
   Perimeter: 461.40   Area: 12,186 S.F. 0.280 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.004                Course: N 45-22-28 W 
  Error North: 0.0027                East : -0.0027          
Precision  1: 115,350.00       
 
 
  



page 10 
 

Parcel name: LOT 9 
 
   North: 28481150.233        East : 610696.352       
Line  Course: N 49-24-02 E  Length: 64.29            
        North: 28481192.071          East : 610745.166       
Curve  Length: 21.90                Radius: 15.50       
        Delta: 80-57-32            Tangent: 13.23            
        Chord: 20.12                Course: N 89-52-48 E 
    Course In: S 40-35-58 E     Course Out: N 40-21-34 E 
    RP  North: 28481180.302          East : 610755.252       
    End North: 28481192.113          East : 610765.290       
Curve  Length: 80.70                Radius: 54.50       
        Delta: 84-50-35            Tangent: 49.80            
        Chord: 73.53                Course: N 87-56-16 E 
    Course In: N 40-21-34 E     Course Out: S 44-29-01 E 
    RP  North: 28481233.642          East : 610800.583       
    End North: 28481194.759          East : 610838.772       
Line  Course: S 44-29-48 E  Length: 77.75            
        North: 28481139.300          East : 610893.264       
Line  Course: S 45-30-12 W  Length: 132.79           
        North: 28481046.232          East : 610798.546       
Line  Course: N 44-29-48 W  Length: 145.81           
        North: 28481150.237          East : 610696.353       
 
   Perimeter: 523.24   Area: 16,042 S.F. 0.368 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.004                Course: N 12-47-53 E 
  Error North: 0.0041                East : 0.0009           
Precision  1: 130,810.00       
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 10 
 
        North: 28481194.756          East : 610838.768       
Curve  Length: 87.65                Radius: 54.50       
        Delta: 92-08-35            Tangent: 56.58            
        Chord: 78.50                Course: N 00-33-18 W 
    Course In: N 44-29-01 W     Course Out: N 43-22-24 E 
    RP  North: 28481233.639          East : 610800.580       
    End North: 28481273.254          East : 610838.007       
Line  Course: N 42-58-21 E  Length: 135.83           
        North: 28481372.639          East : 610930.596       
Line  Course: S 54-38-16 E  Length: 142.50           
        North: 28481290.168          East : 611046.806       
Line  Course: S 45-30-12 W  Length: 215.26           
        North: 28481139.299          East : 610893.263       
Line  Course: N 44-29-48 W  Length: 77.75            
        North: 28481194.757          East : 610838.770       
 
   Perimeter: 658.99   Area: 25,259 S.F. 0.580 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.003                Course: N 51-41-54 E 
  Error North: 0.0017                East : 0.0021           
Precision  1: 219,663.33       
  



page 11 
 

Parcel name: LOT 11 
 
        North: 28481273.254          East : 610838.007       
Curve  Length: 79.88                Radius: 54.50       
        Delta: 83-58-22            Tangent: 49.05            
        Chord: 72.92                Course: N 88-36-47 W 
    Course In: S 43-22-24 W     Course Out: N 40-35-58 W 
    RP  North: 28481233.639          East : 610800.580       
    End North: 28481275.019          East : 610765.113       
Line  Course: N 38-52-54 W  Length: 117.98           
        North: 28481366.860          East : 610691.055       
Line  Course: N 51-06-29 E  Length: 148.93           
        North: 28481460.366          East : 610806.972       
Line  Course: S 54-38-16 E  Length: 151.59           
        North: 28481372.635          East : 610930.595       
Line  Course: S 42-58-21 W  Length: 135.83           
        North: 28481273.250          East : 610838.007       
 
   Perimeter: 634.21   Area: 25,083 S.F. 0.576 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.004                Course: S 06-49-08 W 
  Error North: -0.0040               East : -0.0005          
Precision  1: 158,552.50       
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 12 
 
   North: 28481275.019        East : 610765.113       
Line  Course: S 49-24-02 W  Length: 76.53            
        North: 28481225.216          East : 610707.005       
Line  Course: N 38-52-54 W  Length: 120.30           
        North: 28481318.863          East : 610631.491       
Line  Course: N 51-08-17 E  Length: 76.50            
        North: 28481366.863          East : 610691.059       
Line  Course: S 38-52-54 E  Length: 117.98           
        North: 28481275.022          East : 610765.116       
 
   Perimeter: 391.32   Area: 9,115 S.F. 0.209 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.004                Course: N 56-39-29 E 
  Error North: 0.0024                East : 0.0037           
Precision  1: 97,827.50        
 
 
  



page 12 
 

Parcel name: LOT 13 
 
   North: 28481225.213        East : 610707.002       
Line  Course: S 49-24-02 W  Length: 76.53            
        North: 28481175.410          East : 610648.894       
Line  Course: N 38-52-54 W  Length: 122.60           
        North: 28481270.847          East : 610571.937       
Line  Course: N 51-07-06 E  Length: 76.50            
        North: 28481318.867          East : 610631.488       
Line  Course: S 38-52-54 E  Length: 120.30           
        North: 28481225.221          East : 610707.002       
 
   Perimeter: 395.94   Area: 9,291 S.F. 0.213 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.007                Course: N 02-15-01 W 
  Error North: 0.0074                East : -0.0003          
Precision  1: 56,561.43        
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 14 
 
   North: 28481175.407        East : 610648.891       
Line  Course: S 49-24-02 W  Length: 76.53            
        North: 28481125.604          East : 610590.784       
Line  Course: N 38-52-54 W  Length: 124.89           
        North: 28481222.824          East : 610512.388       
Line  Course: N 51-07-06 E  Length: 76.50            
        North: 28481270.844          East : 610571.939       
Line  Course: S 38-52-54 E  Length: 122.60           
        North: 28481175.407          East : 610648.897       
 
   Perimeter: 400.53   Area: 9,467 S.F. 0.217 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.006                Course: S 85-54-03 E 
  Error North: -0.0004               East : 0.0060           
Precision  1: 66,753.33        
 
 
  



page 13 
 

Parcel name: LOT 15 
 
   North: 28481125.601        East : 610590.780       
Line  Course: S 49-24-02 W  Length: 59.10            
        North: 28481087.141          East : 610545.907       
Curve  Length: 17.45                Radius: 325.00      
        Delta: 3-04-37             Tangent: 8.73             
        Chord: 17.45                Course: S 47-51-44 W 
    Course In: S 40-35-58 E     Course Out: N 43-40-35 W 
    RP  North: 28480840.376          East : 610757.406       
    End North: 28481075.433          East : 610532.966       
Line  Course: N 38-52-54 W  Length: 127.66           
        North: 28481174.809          East : 610452.832       
Line  Course: N 51-07-06 E  Length: 76.50            
        North: 28481222.829          East : 610512.383       
Line  Course: S 38-52-54 E  Length: 124.89           
        North: 28481125.609          East : 610590.778       
 
   Perimeter: 405.61   Area: 9,645 S.F. 0.221 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.008                Course: N 13-16-20 W 
  Error North: 0.0077                East : -0.0018          
Precision  1: 50,700.00        
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Parcel name: LOT 16 
 
   North: 28480952.991        East : 610430.219       
Line  Course: N 05-15-55 W  Length: 227.04           
        North: 28481179.073          East : 610409.384       
Line  Course: N 84-44-05 E  Length: 37.40            
        North: 28481182.505          East : 610446.626       
Line  Course: S 38-52-54 E  Length: 137.38           
        North: 28481075.562          East : 610532.862       
Curve  Length: 36.66                Radius: 275.00      
        Delta: 7-38-20             Tangent: 18.36            
        Chord: 36.64                Course: S 42-53-18 W 
    Course In: S 43-17-32 E     Course Out: N 50-55-52 W 
    RP  North: 28480875.399          East : 610721.434       
    End North: 28481048.719          East : 610507.927       
Line  Course: S 39-04-08 W  Length: 123.29           
        North: 28480952.998          East : 610430.223       
 
   Perimeter: 561.78   Area: 14,853 S.F. 0.341 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.009                Course: N 32-24-41 E 
  Error North: 0.0073                East : 0.0046           
Precision  1: 62,418.89      
 
 
  



page 14 
 

Parcel name: LOT 17 
 
   North: 28480995.399        East : 610317.853       
Line  Course: N 84-44-05 E  Length: 108.00           
        North: 28481005.309          East : 610425.397       
Line  Course: S 05-15-55 E  Length: 52.54            
        North: 28480952.991          East : 610430.219       
Line  Course: S 39-04-08 W  Length: 80.91            
        North: 28480890.173          East : 610379.225       
Curve  Length: 37.14                Radius: 75.00       
        Delta: 28-22-19            Tangent: 18.96            
        Chord: 36.76                Course: S 53-15-18 W 
    Course In: N 50-55-52 W     Course Out: S 22-33-33 E 
    RP  North: 28480937.443          East : 610320.996       
    End North: 28480868.181          East : 610349.768       
Curve  Length: 29.03                Radius: 15.50       
        Delta: 107-17-38           Tangent: 21.06            
        Chord: 24.97                Course: N 58-54-44 W 
    Course In: N 22-33-33 W     Course Out: S 84-44-05 W 
    RP  North: 28480882.495          East : 610343.822       
    End North: 28480881.073          East : 610328.387       
Line  Course: N 05-15-55 W  Length: 114.81           
        North: 28480995.398          East : 610317.852       
 
   Perimeter: 422.42   Area: 10,993 S.F. 0.252 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.001                Course: S 84-43-49 W 
  Error North: -0.0001               East : -0.0013          
Precision  1: 422,430.00       
 
 
  



page 15 
 

Parcel name: LOT 18 
 
   North: 28480946.001        East : 610272.193       
Line  Course: S 05-15-55 E  Length: 72.50            
        North: 28480873.807          East : 610278.847       
Curve  Length: 24.35                Radius: 15.50       
        Delta: 90-00-00            Tangent: 15.50            
        Chord: 21.92                Course: S 39-44-05 W 
    Course In: S 84-44-05 W     Course Out: S 05-15-55 E 
    RP  North: 28480872.385          East : 610263.412       
    End North: 28480856.950          East : 610264.834       
Line  Course: S 84-44-05 W  Length: 77.00            
        North: 28480849.884          East : 610188.159       
Curve  Length: 24.35                Radius: 15.50       
        Delta: 90-00-00            Tangent: 15.50            
        Chord: 21.92                Course: N 50-15-55 W 
    Course In: N 05-15-55 W     Course Out: S 84-44-05 W 
    RP  North: 28480865.318          East : 610186.737       
    End North: 28480863.896          East : 610171.302       
Line  Course: N 05-15-55 W  Length: 72.50            
        North: 28480936.090          East : 610164.649       
Line  Course: N 84-44-05 E  Length: 108.00           
        North: 28480946.001          East : 610272.193       
 
   Perimeter: 378.69   Area: 9,401 S.F. 0.216 ACRES 
 
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) 
Error Closure: 0.000                Course: S 90-00-00 E 
  Error North: 0.0000                East : 0.0000           
Precision  1: 378,700,000.00   
 
 







claughlin
Stamp

jwinrod
Stamp

bthibault
Engineering Approved 2

mrambo
Stamp

mrambo
Text Box
No public improvements will be accepted by City Council until all slopes greater than 3:1 are permanently stabilized to standards found in the City's BMP Manual.

djohnson
Date Time


































































	06-01-21 PC Agenda.pdf (p.1-3)
	05-04-2021 - DRAFT Minutes.pdf (p.4-8)
	Item I.A.1. New Business - Public Hearing - VAR 2-21 Elko County.pdf (p.9-25)
	CAC varience 5-10-21
	variance

	Item I.B.1. New Business - FM 2-21 Zephyr Heights Unit 1.pdf (p.26-67)
	Zoning Bulletin 04-10-21.pdf (p.68-75)
	Zoning Bulletin 04-25-21.pdf (p.76-83)
	Zoning Bulletin 05-10-21.pdf (p.84-91)

